
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, October 7, 2014

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor Stack.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 8

Public Hearing - September 9, 2014
Regular Meeting - September 9, 2014

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 11001 (TA14-0012) - Text Amendment to City of Kelowna Zoning
Bylaw No. 8000

9 - 9

To give Bylaw No. 11001 second and third readings in order to amend Section
13 - Urban Residential Zones in City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000.

4.2 Bylaw No. 11002 - Rescind Heritage Revitalization Agreement Authorization
Bylaw No. 8753 - 2056 Pandosy Street

10 - 10

To give Bylaw No. 11002 second and third readings in order to rescind the
Heritage Revitalization Agreement on the subject property.

4.3 Bylaw No. 11003 (OCP14-0017) -  3020, 3030, 3040, 3050, 3060, 3070, & 3080 
Abbott Street and (W of ) Cedar Avenue, 3090, 3096, & 3098 Walnut Street
and 252 Meikle Avenue, City of Kelowna

11 - 12

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 11003 second and third readings, and adoption
consideration, in order to amend the Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan
No. 10500.

4.4 Bylaw No. 11004 (Z14-0032) - 3020, 3030, 3040, 3050, 3060, 3070, & 3080 
Abbott Street and (W of ) Cedar Avenue, 3090, 3096, & 3098 Walnut Street

13 - 14



and 252 Meikle Avenue, City of Kelowna

To give Bylaw No. 11004 second and third readings, and adoption
consideration, in order to rezone the subject properties from the RU1 - Large
Lot Housing zone to the P3 - Parks and Open Space zone; from the RU3 - Small
Lot Housing Zone to the P3 - Parks and Open Space zone.

4.5 Bylaw No. 11007 (OCP14-0012) - 1650 KLO Road, Danco Developments Ltd. 15 - 16

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 11007 second and third readings in order to amend the
Future Land Use designation of a portion of the subject property from the
Resource Protection Area designation to the Single/Two Unit
Residential designation. 

4.6 Bylaw No. 11008 (Z14-0025) - 1650 KLO Road, Danco Developments Ltd. 17 - 18

To give Bylaw No. 11008 second and third readings in order to rezone a
portion of the subject property from the RR3 - Rural Residential 3 zone to the
RU3 - Small Lot Housing zone.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Liquor License Application Reports

6.1 Liquor License Application No. LL14-0012 - 1423 Ellis Street. Luigi Coccaro 19 - 39

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
liquor license application to come forward.
To seek Council's support for a Liquor Primary License for a new liquor primary
establishment located on the subject property.

7. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

7.1 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0080 - 940 Bartholomew
Court, Dr. M. H. Rajabally

40 - 48

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a staff recommendation NOT to vary the lot depth from the
required 30 metres to 28.03 metres in order to facilitate a two lot subdivision.

7.2 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0101 - 229 Carion Road,
Norsteel Building Systems

49 - 59

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to



invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
The purpose of the Development Variance Permit is to vary the rear yard
setback from 7.5m required to 1.16m proposed to allow an expansion to the
rear of the existing building.

7.3 Development Permit Application No. DP14-0130 & Development Variance
Permit Application No. DVP14-0131 - 730-760 McCurdy Road, Midwest Ventures
Ltd.

60 - 74

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To demolish an existing industrial building and to consider the form and
character of a new industrial building and associated landscaping/site works on
the subject property.

7.4 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0145 - 5162 Chute Lake
Road, Scott Michael Butler

75 - 84

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
The purpose of the  Development Variance Permit is to allow the construction of
a fence on top of a retaining wall within 0.9m of a retaining wall located on the
property line.

8. Reminders

9. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 8/28/2014 

RIM No. 0930-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning and Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: LL14-0012 Owner: George Peter Boychuk 

Address: 1423 Ellis St. Applicant: Luigi Coccaro 

Subject: Liquor License Application  

Existing OCP Designation: Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial)(MXR) 

Existing Zone: C7 – Central Business Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

In accordance with Section 53 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Regulation and Council Policy 
#359, be it resolved THAT: 
 
Council’s comments on the Liquor Control & Licensing Branch (LCLB)’s prescribed considerations 
for the application from Coccaro & Associates Enterprises Ltd. 1423 Ellis Street, Kelowna BC, 
(legally described as Lot 1, DL 139, O.D.Y.D., Plan 2733) for a Liquor Primary license with a 
capacity of 38 persons and hours of service from 9:00am - 3:00am daily are as follows: 
 
a) The location of the establishment: 
 The property is located within the Downtown core, and is suitable for the proposed small-
 scale Liquor Primary license. 
 
b) The proximity of the establishment to other social or recreational facilities and public 
 buildings: 
 No negative impact on surrounding facilities/buildings is anticipated. 
 
c) The person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment: 
 The capacity and hours are deemed appropriate based on other establishments in the 
 immediate area. 
 
d) The number and market focus of liquor-primary license establishments within a 
 reasonable distance of the proposed location: 
 The size and focus of the establishment would complement existing establishments in the 
 Downtown area. 
 
e) The impact of noise on the community in the immediate vicinity of the establishment: 

19



LL14-0012– Page 2 

 
 

 The potential for noise would be compatible with surrounding land uses. 
 
f) The impact on the community if the application is approved: 
 The proposed license would add to the continued development of a safe, vibrant 
 Downtown area. 
 
g) View of residents:  
 The Council’s comments on the views of residents (if applicable) are as contained within 
 the minutes of the meeting at which the application was considered by Council.  The 
 methods used to gather views of residents were as per Council Policy #359 “Liquor 
 Licensing Policy & Procedures.” 
 
h) Recommendation: 
 Council recommends that the application for a Liquor Primary license be approved. 

2.0 Purpose  

This application seeks Council’s support for a Liquor Primary License for a new liquor primary 
establishment located on the subject property.  

3.0  Urban Planning  

Council Policy #359 specifies guidelines for the siting and density of Liquor Primary 
Establishments.  These parameters are designed to help control the density of late-night 
establishments with a focus on alcohol (nightclubs, pubs, etc.).  Given the location of existing of 
establishments in the area, the application complies with Policy #359.   

The application represents a modest sized liquor primary establishment, to be located within a 
new food primary establishment, currently under construction.  The proposed liquor primary 
license will create greater opportunities to serve a range of patrons, and compliment existing 
licensed establishments.  Given the small scale, niche market that is proposed through this 
business operation, this meets the intent of the City fostering the provision of facilities which 
diversify the selection of venues and entertainment opportunities throughout the Downtown. 

The C7 parking requirements are calculated based on gross floor area, regardless of use (or 
occupant load).  There is no increase in floor area proposed with this application.  Therefore, the 
existing onsite parking is considered compliant to the C7 zone regulations. 

Given the above considerations, the Urban Planning Department is supportive of the proposed 
Liquor Primary establishment.  In addition, the RCMP have no concerns with the proposal. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

An application has been forwarded by the licensee to the Provincial Liquor Control and Licensing 
Branch (LCLB) for their approval.  Procedurally, all new Liquor Primary license requests require 
Local Government comment. 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is renovating the subject property to develop a new food primary establishment 
with an adjoining “VIP Prohibition themed” lounge room with a liquor primary license.  There is 
no outdoor seating proposed with this application. 

 

20



LL14-0012– Page 3 

 
 

The majority of the floor space it to be operated as a food primary. 

Proposed Hours of Sale: 

 Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

Open 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 

Close 3:00am 3:00am 3:00am 3:00am 3:00am 3:00am 3:00am 

 

Licensed Areas Capacity 

Food Primary capacity 105 

Proposed Person Capacity LP area  38* 

*The proposed capacity is based on preliminary floor plans, which are subject to approval by the Building & 
Permitting Branch and the LCLB. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the east side of Ellis Street, south of Doyle Ave., adjacent to 
the proposed location of the Interior Health Community Health and Services Centre building. 

 
Subject Property Map:   1423 Ellis Street 
 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Council Policy #359 – Liquor Licensing Policy and Procedures 

The following sections of Policy #359 are applicable to this application: 

 Small establishments (with person capacity less than 100 persons): 
o i) Should not be located beside an existing Small establishment. 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Library 

New IHA office building 

New Innovation Centre 

City Hall 

Museum 

Memorial Arena 

New Westcorp Hotel 

New Yacht Club 

Community Theatre 

R.C.M.P. Station 

21



LL14-0012– Page 4 

 
 

5.2 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Entertainment Venues.1 Within designated Urban Centres, encourage private-sector provision of 
facilities which diversify the selection of venues and entertainment opportunities throughout the 
city. 

Downtown.2  The City of Kelowna recognizes that a unique, attractive, thriving and livable 
downtown is strategically important to Kelowna’s overall prosperity and success. Towards this 
end, the City will plan and manage the Downtown as a single and special entity and will take a 
proactive, comprehensive, integrated and collaborative approach towards providing services and 
infrastructure, delivering programs, and developing a supportive regulatory and financial 
environment. 

6.0 Technical Comments   

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment, 

6.2 Bylaw Services 

No concerns, 

6.3 Fire Department 

No concerns, 

6.4 R.C.M.P. 

Given the venue size and stated market objectives, the RCMP have no concerns regarding 
this application. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: July 22, 2014  
 

Report prepared by: 

     

Paul McVey, Urban Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Manager, Urban Planning 
  

                                                      
1
 Policy 5.17.1 (Development Process Chapter 5, page 5.21) 

2
 Policy 8.9.2 (Economic Development Chapter8, page 8.4 ) 

22



LL14-0012– Page 5 

 
 

 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Occupant Load Floor Plan 
Applicant Community Impact Statement 
LCLB License Application Package 

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 9/2/2014 

RIM No. 1940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (DB) 

Application: DVP14-0080 Owner: 
Maryse Rajabally 

Mohammad Rajabally 

Address: 940 Bartholomew Court Applicant: Dr. M. H. Rajabally 

Subject: Development Variance Permit for Lot Depth 

Existing OCP Designation: 
 
S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 
 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council not authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DP14-0080, for Lot 
1, Section 31, Township 29, ODYD, Plan 41690, located on 940 Bartholomew Court, Kelowna, BC. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a variance to lot depth from the required 30 metres to 28.03 metres in order to 
facilitate a two lot subdivision. 

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture and Environment Services 

The subject property is situated on the southeast corner of Dehart Road and Bartholomew Court 
in the North Mission/Crawford sector area of the City.  The applicant is proposing to subdivide 
and construct a one storey single detached house on the proposed lot.   
 
The applicant has previously submitted three (3) subdivision applications for Preliminary Layout 
Review (PLR) and two (2) previous Development Variance Permit applications (DVP).  All of the 
previous PLR applications were refused by the Approving Officer and none of the previous DVP 
applications were supported by Council. All previous applications have been for the same two lot 
configuration.   
 
As identified above, the Preliminary Layout Reviews (submitted in 1998, 2004 and 2005) were not 
supported by the Subdivision Approving Officer.  The rationale provided is that the proposals 
were considered to be contrary to the public interest, pursuant to Section 85 (3) of the Land Title 
Act. More specifically, given the subject property’s location relative to the character of the 
surrounding neighbourhood, the proposed subdivision was considered unsuited to the 
configuration of the property being subdivided or to the use intended.  Principally, the proposed 

40



DVP14-0080– Page 2 

 
 

subdivision does not conform to the RU1-Large Lot Housing zoning requirements with regards to 
the lot depth.  
 
As for the previous Development Variance Permit applications to vary the lot depths (submitted 
in 1999 and 2004), these applications were referred to both the Advisory Planning Commission 
and Council.  At that time, the applications were not supported by either the Advisory Planning 
Commission or City Council. 
 
Given this information, the recommendation from staff regarding the current DVP and concurrent 
PLR applications to vary the lot depth in order to facilitate the proposed two lot subdivision 
remains unchanged from the previous applications. 

4.0 Proposal 

The applicant is requesting a two (2) lot subdivision (RU1-Large Lot Housing) with lot sizes of 
628m2 and 707m2 for proposed Lot A and Lot B respectively.  To allow this subdivision to proceed, 
the applicant is requesting that the minimum lot depth of 30m be varied.  The specific variance 
request is to allow for a lot depth of 28.03 metres for Lot A (see attached survey plan). 

4.1 Site Context 

The subject property is situated on the southeast corner of Dehart Road and Bartholomew Court 
in the North Mission/Crawford sector area of the City.  The existing single detached house 
(proposed Lot B) and the access from the north side of Bartholomew Court would remain 
unchanged.  The applicant is proposing to build a one storey single detached house (on proposed 
Lot A).  Access to the newly created lot is proposed on the east side of Bartholomew Court at the 
south side of the new lot. 
 

Subject Property Map: 940 Bartholomew Court 

 
 

 

Subject Property 

41



DVP14-0080– Page 3 

 
 

 

Adjacent zones and uses are: 
 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North A1 – Agriculture 1 Farm 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single Detached Housing 

South A1 – Agriculture 1 Rural Residential 

West A1 – Agriculture 1 Rural Residential 

 
Zones Analysis: 
 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA Proposal Lot A/Lot B 
RU1 ZONE 

REQUIREMENTS 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 628 m2 / 707 m2 550 m2 

Lot Width  22.6 m / 22.6 m  16.5 m 

Lot Depth (1) 28.03 m / 31.45m 30 m 

Development Regulations 

Max Site Coverage (buildings) Not specified / 27% 40% 

Single Family Dwelling 

Max Height   Not specified / 1 storey  2 ½ storeys / 9.5 m 

Min Front Yard Not specified / 6.94 m 6.0 m 

Min Side Yard (w) Not Specified / 5.6 m 4.5 m (Flanking street) 

Min Side Yard (e) Not specified / 1.93 m (2) 2.0 m 

Min Rear Yard Not specified / 7.5 m 7.5 m   

(1) A Variance is requested for the front yard setback. 

(2) Existing legal non conforming.  Proposed subdivision will not worsen existing non conformity. 

 

5.0 Technical Comments   

5.1 Development Engineering 

 
Should the Development Variance Permit be approved by Council the following will be required: 
 
As existing Lots 2, 3 and 4 (of Plan 41690) may also have future subdivision potential a 6 meter 
wide right-of-way agreement must be registered across proposed Lot A, and or on the remainder 
of Lot 1 for future vehicular access as no direct access is permitted onto Dehart Road.  
 

6.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:     May 5th, 2014 
Referral Comments Received:     May 13th, 2014 
Confirmation of Public Notification Received:    September 5th, 2014 
 
 
 

42



DVP14-0080– Page 4 

 
 

7.0 Alternate Recommendation 

Should Council choose to support the variance the following recommendations would apply: 
 
THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0080; Lot 1, 
Sec. 31, Twp. 29, ODYD, Plan 41690   

 
AND THAT a variance to Section 13.1.5 (b) of City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted 
that varies the required lot depth from 30.0 metres to 28.03 metres. 

Report prepared by: 

     
Damien Burggraeve, Land Use Planner  
 
Approved for Inclusion: 
 

Shelley Gambacort 
Director of Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Proposed Subdivision Plan 

43



44



45



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 
 

Development Permit No.:   DVP14-0080  

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 

  
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

 

ISSUED TO:                         Maryse Rajabally & Mohammad Rajabally 

LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE: 940 Bartholomew Court 
 

 

 LOT SECTION D.L. TOWNSHIP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

1 31  29 ODYD 41690 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for Development and Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits 
the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless 
specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted 
by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified 
as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 
 

 

1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

a) AND THAT a variance to Section 13.1.5 (b) of City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted that 
varies the required lot depth from 30.0 metres to 28.03 metres. 
 

b) As existing Lots 2, 3 and 4 (of Plan 41690) may also have future subdivision potential a 6 meter wide 
right-of-way agreement must be registered across proposed Lot A, and or on the remainder of Lot 1 
for future vehicular access as no direct access is permitted onto Dehart Road.  
 

2. The development shall commence by and in accordance with an approved Building Permit within ONE YEAR of 

the date of the Municipal Council authorization resolution. 
 
3. PERFORMANCE SECURITY:  

 
As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 
development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is 
returned.  The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the 
development hereby authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, 
the Municipality may use the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any 
surplus shall be paid over to the Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by 
this Permit within the time set out above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed 
accordingly: 

46



 - 2 - Permit No. DVP14-0080 
 
 
 
 (a) Cash in the amount of $        N/A                . 
 (b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of ____N/A________. 
 (c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of     N/A     .   
 
 Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the 

City with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes 
and costs have been paid. 
 

4. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 

provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part 
hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of 

this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferable unless specifically permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer 

the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in 

support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the 
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually 
indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property 
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, 
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, 

the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any 
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works 
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and 
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the 
Community Planning & Real Estate Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the 
application. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

47



 - 3 - Permit No. DVP14-0080 
 
 
 

I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
6. APPROVALS: 
 

ISSUED BY THE COMMUNITY PLANNING & REAL ESTATE DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE              DAY  

OF     2014, BY THE DIVISIONAL DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING & REAL ESTATE SERVICES. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist 
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate  

 

48



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 9/9/2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: 
 
DVP14-0101 

Owner: All Cat Services Inc. 

Address: 229 Carion Road Applicant: Norsteel Building Systems 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Industrial (IND) 

Existing Zone: I3 – Heavy Industrial  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0101 for Lot 9, Section 2, 
Township 20, O.D.Y.D., Plan KAP57943, located on 229 Carion Road, Kelowna, BC subject to the 
following: 
 
THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted:  

Section 15.3.5(e): Development Regulation  
To vary the rear yard setback from 7.5 m required to 1.16m proposed, as shown on 

 Schedule “A”. 

2.0 Purpose  

To seek a Development Variance Permit to vary the rear yard setback from 7.5m required to 
1.16m proposed, to allow an expansion to the rear of the existing building. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

The Urban Planning department supports this application to vary the rear yard setback for the 
building addition.  The location of the proposed building expansion to the south (rear) of the 
building is the logical location for the addition.  An expansion in this location does not impact the 
outdoor yard space, which is a major component of the operation of the business.  It should be 
noted that if this property had been zoned “I2 – General Industrial” as is the property 
immediately to the west, the rear yard setback would be 0.0m. 

The applicant has provided notification information to the neighbouring properties, with the 
exception of the property located at 230 Carion Road.  Several attempts were made to access the 
property to speak with the operator.  However, contact was not successful. 

49



DVP14-0101 – Page 2 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

All Cat Services Inc. is an independent parts and service company that provides sales and repair 
services for “Snow-Cat” type of equipment.  The company has been located on the subject 
property since 2004 when the company moved into a new building they constructed on site. 

4.2 Project Description 

The company now wishes to expand their building to accommodate business growth.  Owing to 
the orientation of the building on the property, the logical location for the building expansion is 
towards the south, to occupy the vacant area adjacent to the south property line. 

The subject property is zoned I3 – Heavy Industrial, which requires a rear yard setback of 7.5m.  
This application for a Development Variance Permit has been made to reduce the rear yard 
setback to 1.16m in order to allow the expansion of the building to the rear of the property. 

The proposed addition will be finished with the same materials as the existing industrial building.  
The subject property is not located within a form and character development permit area. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located within an industrial area located near the northern limits of the 
City of Kelowna, in the area of the former Hiram Walker site.   

Subject Property Map:  229 Carion Road 
 

 
 
  

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Approximate location  
of building addition 

50



DVP14-0101 – Page 3 

 
 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North I3 – Heavy Industrial Manufacturer 

East I3 – Heavy Industrial Office trailer sales and rental 

South I3 – Heavy Industrial  Metal Recycling  

West I2 – General Industrial Manufacturer 

 

4.4 Zone analysis table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA I3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area (no sewer) 10,000m2 4046m2 

Lot Width 40.0m 80 m 

Lot Depth n/a 50 m 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 0.75 0.15 

Height 18m 7m 

Front Yard 10.0m 25.2 m 

Side Yard (west) 7.5m  47.7m 

Side Yard (east) 7.5m 8.0m 

Rear Yard 7.5m 1.16m  

 Indicates a requested variance to vary the rear yard setback from 7.5m required to 1.16m proposed.  

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Industrial Land Use Policies 

Objective 5.281 Focus industrial development to areas suitable for industrial use. 

Policy .3  Location of Heavy Industry2.  Direct heavy industries to area that would not 
negatively affect existing neighbourhoods or businesses and the natural environment. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s) for new construction. 

2 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building 
Permit applications. 

  

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Page 5.29 (Development Process Chapter). 
2
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Page 5.30 (Development Process Chapter). 

51



DVP14-0101 – Page 4 

 
 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

The Development Engineering Services comments and requirements regarding this 
application for a rear yard setback variance from 7.5 m. to 1.16 m. are as follows: 
 

a) The requested rear yard variance setback does not compromise any Municipal 
Infrastructure Services. 

b) This application does not trigger any offsite upgrades. 

6.3 Fire Department 

No concerns 

6.4 Real Estate Department 

No comment 
 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: May 29, 2014 
 
Final notification received:  September 3, 2014 
 
 

Report prepared by: 

 

     
Paul McVey, Urban Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Draft Development Variance Permit 
Conceptual building plans and elevations 
 
 

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: August 20, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning &Real Estate (AC) 

Application: DP14-0130 & DVP14-0131 Owner: 
Midwest Ventures Ltd., Inc. 
No. 46021 

Address: 730-760 McCurdy Rd Applicant: Christina Wilson 

Subject: Development Permit and Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: IND - Industrial 

Existing Zone: I2 – General Industrial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0130 and Development 
Variance Permit DVP14-0131 for Lot 63, District Lot 143, ODYD, Plan 426 Except Plans 15819 and 
A12969, located at 730-760 McCurdy Road, Kelowna, BC, subject to the following: 
 
       1. The dimensions, siting, and exterior design / finish of the building as well as the  

landscaping to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "A"; 
 

       2. The applicant be required to post with the City a Landscape Performance Security deposit  
           in the form of a "Letter of Credit" in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the 
           landscaping;  
 
AND THAT variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 

Section 15.2.5 (e) – Development Regulations 
vary the side yard setback requirement from 4.5m except when abutting a C or I 
zoned properties to 0.0m for the portions of the side yard that abut an I, C or A 
zone.  

2.0 Purpose 

To demolish an existing industrial building and to consider the form and character of a new 
industrial building and associated landscaping / site works on the subject property.  

 

 

60



DP14-0130 & DVP14-0131 – Page 2 

 
 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

The proposed building fits well with the other industrial buildings and the colour scheme has 
appropriate earth tones.  The design meets all zoning bylaw requirements except the side yard 
setback. All new signage will require a sign permit and is not considered as part of this 
Development Permit. The current proposal only shows hypothetical signs.  

The applicant will need to address all the engineering comments prior to Building Permit 
issuance. The long term vision identified by engineering is that McCurdy Road will be upgraded to 
four lanes. Road right-of-way was not taken as there is no rezoning or subdivision application. 
The necessary road right-of-way was not purchased because it was not within the City’s 20 year 
capital plan. The parking configuration will make it difficult to expand the McCurdy Road but a 
compromise in road design could happen when the road widening occurs. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Site Context 

The subject property is located to the north of McCurdy Road and to the East of Highway 97. The 
property is surrounded by CD15 – Airport Business park zone. 

Subject Property Map: 730-760 McCurdy Road 

 

 

Subject 
Property 

61



DP14-0130 & DVP14-0131 – Page 3 

 
 

4.2 Zoning Analysis 

The proposal compares to the RM4 zone requirements as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA I2 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 4,000 m2  23,512 m2 

Lot Width 40 m 91 m 

Lot Depth 35 m 258 m 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 1.5  0.2 

Height 14.0 m 10.6 m 

Front Yard 7.5 m 23.5 m 

Side Yard (west) 0.0 m n/a 

Side Yard (east) 4.5 m 0 m *  

Rear Yard 0.0 m 198 m 

Other Regulations 
Min. Parking Requirements 22 spaces 22 spaces 

Min. Setback for  Vehicular 
Parking 

3.0 m from any street 
1.5 m from any side property line 

Meets requirements 

Bicycle Parking Class 2: 0.3/100m2 (4 spaces) Class 2: 0.3/100m2 (4 spaces) 

Loading Space 1 space Meets requirements 

*Variance requested 

 

5.0 Technical Comments 

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

a. Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s)  

b. A Building Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit 
applications, but the following items may affect the form and character of the 
building(s): 

c. Hard surface paths are to be provided from the exit stairwells to the street 
d. Any security system that limits access to exiting needs to be addressed in the code 

analysis by the architect. 
e. Access to the roof is required per NFPA and guard rails may be required and should be 

reflected in the plans if required.  
f. Fire department to comment of driveway access and turn radius requirements. 
g. A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and site drainage.  
h. Fire resistance ratings are required for storage, janitor and/or garbage enclosure 

room(s). The drawings submitted for building permit is to clearly identify how this 
rating will be achieved and where these area(s) are located. 

i. Washroom requirements for base building are too addressed in permit application. 
j. Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development 

permit. This should include the signage required for the building addressing to be 
defined on the drawings per the bylaws. 

k. Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

62



DP14-0130 & DVP14-0131 – Page 4 

 
 

l. Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

See Attached. 

6.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received:   July 8, 2014 

Date of Landscape Estimate Received:  July 8, 2014  

Report prepared by: 

 
     

Adam Cseke, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:              Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Development Engineering Memo 
Development Permit (DP14-0130) 
Development Variance Permit (DP14-0131) 
 

63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 9/9/2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: DVP14-0145 Owner: 
Scott Michael Butler, Melisa 
Anne Butler 

Address: 5162 Chute Lake Cr. Applicant: Scott Michael Butler 

Subject: Development Variance Permit   

Existing OCP Designation: Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES) 

Existing Zone: 
CD2 – Kettle Valley Comprehensive Residential Development 
 (Type II – Estate Single Family) 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0145 for Lot B, 
Section 24, Township 28, S.D.Y.D., Plan KAP84608, located on 5162 Chute Lake Road, Kelowna, 
BC subject to the following: 

 
THAT a variances to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted:  

Section 7.5.11: Fencing and Retaining Walls  
To vary the minimum setback of a fence on top of a retaining wall from 1.2 m required to 
0.9m proposed. 

2.0 Purpose 

To seek a development variance permit to allow the construction of a fence on top of a retaining 
wall within 0.9m of a retaining wall located on the property line. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

The Urban Planning department supports the proposal to construct a fence within 0.9m of a 
retaining wall on property line, where Section 7.5.11 of Zoning Bylaw 8000 requires a fence of 
this height to be constructed 1.2m from the property line.  The applicant has notified their 
neighbours and has received written support from the immediately affected neighbours. 

  

75



DVP14-0145 – Page 2 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The applicant wishes to vary the siting requirements for a fence constructed above a retaining 
wall in order to provide a visual and safety buffer for garbage and recycling containers. 

4.2 Project Description 

The dwelling located on the subject property was constructed in 2008.  The site was graded at 
that time.  The applicant now wishes to fence in the walkway, as well as to provide a screened 
area for the garbage and recycling bins.  The proposed location of the fence is less that the 
required 1.2m setback for a fence above a retaining wall. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located in the Southwest Mission sector, on Chute Lake Dr, adjacent to 
the Kettle Valley neighbourhood. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North CD2 (Type II-Estate Single Family) Single Family Dwelling 

East RR2 – Rural Residential 2 Single Family Dwelling 

South CD2 (Type II-Estate Single Family) Single Family Dwelling 

West RR1 – Rural Residential 1 (LUC77-1002) Single Family Dwelling 

 

Subject Property Map:      5162 Chute Lake Cr. 
 

 
 

 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Approximate location 
of retaining wall 

76



DVP14-0145 – Page 3 

 
 

5.0 Technical Comments  

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No Comment. 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

The Development Variance Permit to vary the minimum fence setback from retaining wall 
from 1.2m required to  0.9m proposed, does not compromise any municipal services.  

5.3 Fire Department 

No Concerns. 

6.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: August 8, 2014  
 
 

Report prepared by: 

 

     
Paul McVey, Urban Planner  
  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 

Site Plan 
Cross-Section through fence/retaining wall 
Street View photo 
 
 
 

 
 

77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84


	Agenda
	3. Minutes - Sept 9 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Minutes - Sept 9 Regular Tuesday Meeting.pdf
	4.1 bl11001-2.pdf
	4.2 bl11002.pdf
	4.3 bl11003-1.pdf
	4.4 bl11004.pdf
	4.5 Bylaw No. 11007 (OCP14-0012).pdf
	4.6 Bylaw No. 11008 (Z14-0025).pdf
	6.1 2014 10 07 Report LL14-0012 1423 Ellis St  .docx
	6.1 2014 10 07 Attachments LL14-0012 1423 Ellis St.pdf
	7.1 2014 09 10 Report DVP14-0080 940 Bartholomew.docx
	7.1 2014 09 10 Attachments DVP14-0080 940 Bartholemew Crt.pdf
	7.1 DVP14-0080 Permit - Attachment.docx
	7.2 2014 10 07 Report DVP14-0101 229 Carion Rd.docx
	7.2 2014 10 07 Attachments DVP14-0101 229 Carion Rd.pdf
	7.3 2014 10 07  Report DP14-0130 DVP14-0131 McCurdy 730-760 .docx
	7.3 2014 10 07 Attachments DP14-0130 DVP14-0131.pdf
	7.4 2014 10 07 Report DVP14-0145 5162 Chute Lake Rd .docx
	7.4 2014 10 07 Attachments DVP14-0145 5162 Chute Lake Cres.pdf

